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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS 
FILED 

CUYAHOGA COUNTY, OHIO 
lOlL fEB. 23 A 10: 00 I 

STATE OJ: OHIO, ex rel. 
MICHAEL DEWINE 
.ATfORNEY GENERAL OF OHIO 

. Plaintiff 

v. 

J]NIVERSAL DEBT &PAYMENT 
SOLUTIONS, LLC, ~t aL 

Defendants. 

) ~~H) ... ~"':"1ft . ..;-) 

:··· ' _,.,····t .. fl.-.; 

) CASENO.CV-J5,8457S2i: ::,::,·.!)( CJURTS 
) . cu:·,::;; ::r~A COliNP( 

) JUDGE.MATIHEW McMONAGLE 
) 
) 
) 
) AGREED CONSENTJIJDGMENT 
) ENTRY AND ORDER ·BETWEEN 
) PLAINTIFF STATE OF OHIO AND 
) DEFENDANT MOHAN BAGGA 
) 

PREAMBLE 

· This matter came to be heard upon the filing of a Complaint by Plaintiff, State of Ohio, 

acting through counsel, Ohio Attorney General Michael.DeWine C'Plaiiltiff'), alleging that 

DefendantS M:ohan Bagga, Universal Debt & Payment Solutions, LLC ('~UDPS'?, ~d Marcus 

Brown (uBrown"), aka Marcus Middlebrooks~ Marcus Jol:mson, and Ernest Johnson, dba.LRS 

Litigations (''LR.S''), dba IRS Equity and Worldwide Requisitions;' violated the Fair Debt 

Co1lection Practices Act ("FDCPA"), 15 _U.S.G.l692- 1692p) the Dodd~Frank Act; 12 U.S.C. 

5536, and the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act (~•csPA ,;)2• 

Plaintiff has reached an agreement with Defendant Bagga .and this Agreed Consent 

Judgment Entry and Order ('"Consent Judgment;') is intended to ~esolve all pending claims 

alleged against Defendant Bagga in the Gompla~nt. By signing this entry, Defendant submits to 

1 Defendants UDPS.BroWn., andLRS are not parties to th1s Consent Judgment. 

2This Consent.1udgment only. pertains to .J)efendant Bagga and the. violations of the Dodd-Frank Act and the CSP A, 
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the personal jurisdiction :of this Court and consents to the entry of this ·Consent Judgment 

pursuant to R.C. l345.07(f); 

Defendanfherepy c<;)nsentsto the Court's ftndingsoffacts and conclusions oflaw,to the 

imposition of this. Consent JUI:lgment, and to the rights of Plaintiff to enforce 'this Consent 

Judgment. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Defendant Universal Debt & Payment Solutions, LLC .("UDPS") is a Georgia limited 

liability compimy ,that does business in Cuyahoga County and in the.Stat<;!:ofOhio ·and is 

registered at3939 Lavista Road, S~ite 312,·Tucker, Georgia 30084. 

2.. Defendant UDPS was organized by Defendant Mohan Bagga ('~Bagga;'):. 

3. DefendantBagga is the.owner ofDefendant UDPS. 

4. Defendant Baggais an individualand resides at 6375 Whitestqne Place. Duluth, Georgia 

30Q97; 

5'. Defendant lJDPS had its principal place of business located at 6375 Whitestone P.lace, 

Duluth. Georgia 30097-8076. 

c). The 3939 Lavista Rpad address. betorigs to a post 6ffH;e pox af a. UPS Store, whith ·is 

registered to DefendanrMarctis Brown. 

7. Defe11dant UDPS, is also registered !15 a limited. liability comp~:tny in the St.ate of New 

York 

8. The New York articles ofincorporation include a mailing address of 142 Stratford .Road, 

Buffalo, New York 14216, which is also a· residential mailing address for Defendant 

Marcus Brown. 
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9. Defendant Marcus Br.owi~, also known as Marcus Middlebrooks~ Marcus Johnson, and 

Ernest Johnson ("~ro\Vll"), is an indivii;lual and resides at 142 Stratford Road, Buffalo,· 

New York 14216. 

lO. Defendant Brown is the tre~surer{or Defendant UDPS, 

ll. Defendant Brown also does business as LRS Litigations ("LRS1'), a fictitious business 

entity Which has a purported business address' of 600 Superior Avenue East; Suite 1300? 

Cleveland, Ohio 441 t4. 

12. DefendantLRS Litigations does business as IRS Equity and Worldwide Requisitions; 

13; , Defendants UDPS and LRS did business in Cuyahoga: County and in the State of Ohio; 

however, Defendants UDPS.and LRS failed to registerwith the, Ohio Secretary ofState. 

14. Defendants LF.$ ·and Brown wer:e. 1;1t all times relevant to this action, engaged ,in 

providing collection services by regularly collecting, or attempting to colle,ct, from 

consumersdebts thatare due or alleged to }?e due. 

]5. Using the namesLRS Litigations, IRS Equity, and Worldwide Reqwsitions,'DefendantS 

LRS and Brown attempted to collect on alleged debts through telephone calls. 

16. Defend~ts LRS and Brown u~d thre~ts. intimidation~ and harassment to collect debts 

J.H11'portedly owed by consumers. 
' ' 

17. Jn·most cases •. consumers did not owe the·d~.bts referenced. 

18. However, due to Defendant LRS and Brown's collection methods of using false 

statements and threats, consumers often sent money to these debt ®Hectors. 

19. Defendant Bagga and his company~ Defendant UDPS, regularly accepted payments from 

such consumers on behalf of Defendants LRS and Brown. 
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consu~ers, he played a key role inJhe d~bt C9llectic:mischen1~ ~s hej$ hotonJy t~e. .own~r 

0ftJDPS~ but he alscrcontrolied the ·b(lrtk a~co\lritsin ~he names oflJDPS.·artd-used th~se 

foods to Defendant Br.own, among others, 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

21. The Court.has jurisdiction over the subject fil~ltter,Jssues •. and parties to this C<m~et}t 

Judg!nef1t purs\lantto.KC,l345;04; 

22. The CoMrl has venue to bear·thisc~~·pllrsi)~t.to()hiQ.Civ~ R. 3(BJ(3) ih that some ()fthe· 

transactions complained. of herein, a!)d out _of which this: ~cti()n #ost}, *(;~utre~l. in 

C:uyahoga;Courity •. 

23.~ The l:it.tsiness practie~s of Defendant Bagg!l, ·as described herein ·.an:d in Plaintiffs 

Complaint, are.govemedbytheCSPA, R.C .. l345J)t et..seq.,andtheDodd-Fran}t.J\,:ct, 'll 

U~KC. 5536.. 

~4. The Onio ;\'ttomey Gei'l~raiis the pro~r p~yto c()mmence these· proceeding$ under the 

authority of R~C. B4S:OTami by ·virtue c:tf'hi$ f$t;;ltutqry and cotniilofl ':a~,~utljol'ity, to 

protect the i»terests 'Of the citizens of the St~te·of' Qhio. 

~5. Defendimt Ba.gga is a '"$ti~plier" as tliatJetm i!:r tJefin~d ~~. R,C" P4S,Ol(G)'aS: Defel)dant 

transactions by· accept in~ payment of debts. alil.~&edJy ,owed by consj:,Itnel;$, which arose· 

from ·consumer transactl~ns, for- purposes that were primarily persona1~ family or 

household within the meaning ~pedfied in,R.c. t34'5.(}l(A) an:d~ (D), :to individuals in 

Cl.lyahqga County and· other counties in the State.ofOhio and i;tctoss,the UniteifStates. 
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26. D~fen<;iant Bagga is a ''coyered person"as. that term is defined in 12 U.S. C. 548l(6)(B) as 

Defendant Bagga ~as, at .all times relevant hex:ein, been an affiliate. qf Defendants. LRS 

a!l.d Brown with regard . to transactions with individuf,lls in Cuyab()ga County a_lnd ot:her 

counties in the State of Ohio arid across .the United States. 

27. Defendant Bagga ha5 engaged in acts •and practices in violation ofthe Dodd:-Ftank Act; 

12 U.S,C. 5536(a)(l)(A), by regulru:ly accepting payments, vhi his bUsiness~ Universal 

Debt &.PaymentSolutions, LLC, from the consumers on behalf of the Defendants LRS 

~nd Brown, when such payments were obtained through the acts and practices .of LRS 

and Brown. in violation oftb~ FDCP A. 

28. Defendant Bagga has engaged in acts and practices in violation. of the Dodd-Frank Act, 

U U.s;C 5536(a)(3). by knowingly or recklessly pmviding substantiaJ assistanqe to 

Defendants LRS and Brown inviolation ofl2 U.S.C. 5531. 

29. Defendant Bagga has committed unfair and deceptive acts .or practices in violation of the 

CSPA, 'R.C. 1345.02(A), by engagingin acts and practices in'violation of the Dodd.;frank 

Acta~ set forth in paragraphs (27}and (28) above. 

ORDER 

For purposes ofaffecting this Consent Judgment~ it is therefore ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND 

DECREED that: 

1. Plaintitp:S request for a Declaratory Judgment is GRANTED.; and it is therefo.re 

DECLARED that the .acts and practices enumerated in the Conclusions o! Law set forth 

above. in Paragraphs (27)thtough (29) violate.the CSPA R.C. l345.tH et seq:~ and the 

Substantive Rules enacted thereunder, tn the manner set forth therein. 
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Plaintiff's request for Declaratory Judgment is GRANTED, and it is therefore 

[)BCLARED t}Ia( the ~:wts and practices set forth in Paragraph J27) - (29) aboye violate. 

the Dodd-Frank Act, 12 U.S.C. 5536. in the manner s~t forth herein :a:rtd in Plaintiff's 

Complaint. 

2. Defendant is PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from soliciting and engaging in the 

business of effe¢ting consumer tra.nsactions in the State of Ohio as a supplier, as defined 

inR.G. l34SJH (C), 

3. Defendant, under his own n~me or any other. names; his ~g~nts, 'representatives, 

salespeople. employees) successors and assigns; and all persons. aqting on behalf of the 

Defendant directly or indirectly, through any corporate or private device. partnership or 

association, is PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from engaging in the acts and practices 

enumerated in the Conclusions o.f Law set fo~ above'· inParagraphs (27) t}Irough {29). 

4. Qefendant, under his OWn name or any other nafu,es, his agents, repre~en_ttitives, 

salespeople, employees, successors and assigns, ·and all persons acting on behalf of the 

Defendant directly 'ot indirectly, through at1y corporate or private device, partnership or 

association~ is PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from engaging in the acts or 'practices of 

which Plaintiff complains and from further violating the Dodd-Frank ACt:, 12 U .S.C. 5536 

et seq.. !ind the CSPA, R.C. 1345:01 et seq., and the Substantive Rules enacted 

thereunder. 

5. Defendant is ORDERED to maintain in his possession and control for aperiod of five (5) 

years, and _in a manner designed to secure the privacy of aU consumers.· personal 

information; aU business records relating to Defendant's actions including solicitation, 

payment acceptance and any additional records in the State of Ohio and to pemiit the 

6 



. ' 

Ohio Attorney General or his representative, upon reas6~l:lble twenty>~four (24} hour 

notice, to inspect and/or copy any a.nd all records. 

6. IT IS ACKNOWLEDGED that Defe:Ud£11lt Bagga has provide~ restitution, in the amount 

ofOne HundredSixty"TwoD0Jlars and 50/100 Cents{$162.50), to the Attorney General 

who shall di'stribute the funds to consumer Debra Oliver, who had funds taken out of her 

accountby Defendant and his company, Defendant UDPS. 

7. IT IS Fl]RTHER ORDERED that Defendant Hagga is assessed a civil penalty in the 

amount of Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00). Upon Defendant Sagga•s submission 

ofanJndividual Financial Statement, the civil penalty shall be suspended in its entirety 

for so1o:ng as DefendantBaggais in full compliance with all prov'isions of this Consent 

Judg~ent. 

8. The Attorney General may assert any claim that Defendant has violated this Consent 

Judgment in a separate civil action to enforce this Consent Judgment or to seek· any other 

teliefaffotded byl~w. In any such action or proceeding, relevant evidence of conduct 

that occurred before the filing date of this Consent Judgment shall be admissible on any 

material issue, including alleged willfulness, intent, knowledge. contempt or breach, to 

the extent permitted by law. By this paragraph, Defendant does not waive ariy 

evidentiary obJection or any other o.ojection it may have as permitted by law to the 

admissibility of any such evidence. 

9. IT iS FURTHER OR.DERED that any violation ofthe terms of this Consent Judgment 

shall constitute contempt Service ofany action for contempt shalf be complete upon 

mailing a certified copy of such action to the Defendant. 

10. In the event the Ohio Attorney General must initiate legal action ot incur any costs to 
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·compel Defendant to abide by this Agreed Entry, upon order of the Court; D~fendant 

shall be' li~bie to the Ohio Attorney General for any and all penalties imposed by the 

Court for contempt and, in addition to the paymentto d1e State awarded herein, any such 

costs and . re~onable attorneys' fees expended to proceed with. such a motion for 

contempt thatth~ Co:ui:t may impose. 

1 L Failure of the Attorney General to timely enforce any term, c0ndition. or n'!quirement of 

this Consent Judgment shall not provide, nor be construed to provide, Defendant a 

defense for noncompliance with a!JY ~enn ofthis COnsent Judgment or any other Jaw, 

rule; or regulation; nor shall it stop or limit the Attorney General from later enforcing any 

term of this Consent Judgment or seeking ~y other remedy available by law. rule, or 

regulation. 

12. Nothittg in this Consent Judgment shall in any way preclude any investigation or 

enforcement action. against Defendant under any legal authority granted to the State for 

transactions not stlhj~tto this action. 

13.ITJ~ FURTHER ORJ)ERED thatDefendan(shaUnot represent directly or indirectly or 

in any way whatsoever that the Court or the Ohio Attorney General has sanctioned, 

condoned, or approved any part or aspect ofDefendant' s business operation. 

14. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant shall pay all court costs associated with this 

matter. 

15. This·Courtshall retain jurisdiction to enforce c6mpliancewiththis Consent Judgment. 

IT IS SO ORDERED. 

-DA_T_E ___ -z=--4/~__'L._~_~ 
.JUDGE McMONA 
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JOINTL YAPPROVED-FOR ENTRY AND SUBMITTED BY: 

FORTHEOHIO ATTORNEY GENEl<AL, 1\1ICHAELD~WINE 

Assi~ta J Section Chief 
:REBECCA f. SCHLAG (( 61897) 
-SeniorAssistant Attorney General 
Consumet Protection Section 
30 East Broad Strc:et, 141n Floor. 
·Columbus~ Ohio 43215-3428 

·· (614)466:.-8169; (866) .528-7423 (f~csf~nile) 
meHssa:wright@ohioattomeygeneraLgov 
rebecca.schlag@ohioattornyegeneral.gov 
Cozm.selfor Plaintiff Ohio Aitorney General 

FOR PROSE DEFENDANT MOHAN BAGGA 

.Mohan B~gga 
6375 Whitestone Place 
Duluth, Georgia 30097•8076 
(770}57'1-6239 
i:nbaggal02@yahoo;com 
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